
 HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 

 AGENDA OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 FEBRUARY 12, 2014 

 8:15 A.M. 

1. Call to Order by Chairman:

2. MINUTES:  Consider approval of the minutes from the January 8, 2014

meeting:

ACTION:____________________________________________________________________

3. CASE # 01-14 –       Bruce & Germaine Taggart –         2302 Donald          “R-2”

Request 19 foot variance to reduce the rear yard building setback from the

required 25 feet to 6 feet for a 27’8” X 15’4” sunroom.

ACTION:____________________________________________________________________

4. CASE # 02-14 – James Wacker (potential buyer) & Inam Haz (owner)    501Vine    “C-2”

Request exception for special use permit to construct storage units

ACTION:____________________________________________________________________

5. OTHER:

ACTION___________________________________________________________________________

   Enclosed:  Draft Minutes  
 Copy of Application & Supporting Documentation 

If you will be unable to attend please contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office at 785- 628-7310. 
Thank you.  Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should 
contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled 
meeting time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any requests for assistance. 



1 

DRAFT MINUTES  
HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

COMMISSION CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL  

MINUTES  

JANUARY 8, 2014 

8:15 A.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  The Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals met on Wednesday, 

January 8, 2014 at 8:15 a.m. in Commission Chambers of City Hall. 

Roll Call: 

Present: Lou Caplan 

Jerry Sonntag 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt  

Chairman Lou Caplan declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

City Staff Present: Jesse Rohr, Superintendent of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement, 

Mike Schlyer, Inspector, Dean Koehn, Inspector and Linda Bixenman, Administrative 

Secretary of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement. 

2. MINUTES:  There was a motion by Jerry Sonntag with a second by Gerald Befort to

approve the minutes from the December 18, 2013 meeting. 

Vote:  Ayes:   Lou Caplan 

Jerry Sonntag 

Gerald Befort 

Thomas Lippert 

Shane Pruitt  

3. TRAINING SESSION AUDIO CONFERENCE  PROGRAM on conducting the Zoning of

Appeals Hearing  Jesse Rohr started the audio conference program with the power point 

presentation. 

4. ADJOURNMENT:  Lou Caplan adjourned the meeting at 10:05 a.m.

Submitted by: Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Secretary, 

 Planning, Inspection and Enforcement 



Board of Zoning Appeals Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Setback Variance Application #01-14 

ADDRESS:  2302 Donald Dr. 

OWNER: Germaine and Bruce Taggart 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Variance 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

AGENDA DATE:  February 12, 2014 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the required rear yard setback from 
25 feet to 6 feet, a variance of 19 feet to allow construction of a 16 x 28 addition on 
the property located at 2302 Donald Dr. (see attached site drawing)  Staff 
recommends denial of the variance due to the request not meeting the requirements 
of State Statute and City Ordinance as they pertain to variances and the statutory 
requirements, particularly uniqueness, hardship, and the spirit and intent of the 
adopted regulations. (as further detailed below) 

BACKGROUND: 

• The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the required rear yard
setback from 25 feet to 6 feet, a variance of 19 feet to allow construction of a
16 x 28 addition on the property located at 2302 Donald Dr.

• The owner wishes to construct an addition that is 16 feet in width x 28 feet in
length.

• The owner makes the claim that running the addition parallel to the house,
which was considered, is not possible due to underground utilities such as a
gas line being in the way.

• The lot is zoned R-2, Single-Family Dwelling District

R-2 Required Applicant Proposed 

Front Yard Min. 30 ft N/A 
Side Yard 10% of width, Min. of 7’ N/A 
Rear Yard Min. 25 ft 6 ft 

City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement



� Page 2

STANDARDS OF EVALUATION: 

Per State Statute 12-759 and City Ordinance Sec. 71-1250 

• The BZA has the authority to grant a variance if a literal enforcement of the
provisions of the adopted regulations, will, in an individual case, result in
unnecessary hardship, provided:

o The spirit of the regulations shall be observed
o Public safety and welfare secured
o Substantial justice shall be done

• The applicant must show that the property was acquired in good faith and that
the variance is needed due to extraordinary or exceptional circumstances of
the property such as exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or shape of the lot

• Before granting a variance on the basis of unusual difficulty or unreasonable
hardship, there must be finding by the Board that all of the following conditions
exist:

a. Uniqueness of the property not ordinarily found in the same zone or
district and not created by willful action of the owner

Staff Analysis:  This lot is similar in size and shape to others within the area. 
The proposed addition would allow the main dwelling to differ from others 
within the neighborhood. 

b. The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent
property owners

Staff Analysis:  This proposed addition would not appear to have any 
adverse affects on the rights of nearby property owners. 

c. The strict application of the code will constitute unnecessary hardship
upon the property owner

Staff Analysis:  The sole reason for the proposed addition is for increased 
living space as a sunroom/windbreak from southwest winds in the backyard.  
This is a choice of the owner and is completely a self-imposed hardship.  The 
provisions of the regulations do not hinder the owner from living on the 
property in a manner consistent with other neighboring properties. 

d. The variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals,
order, convenience, propriety, or general welfare

Staff Analysis:  This proposed addition would not appear to adversely affect 
the public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, propriety, or general 
welfare, but would set precedence for the entire neighborhood or other similar 
neighborhoods in Hays. 



� Page 3

e. The granting of the variance desired will not be opposed to the general
spirit and intent of the regulations

Staff Analysis:  The general spirit and intent of the adopted regulations is to 
allow for rear yard area and separation of dwellings from others.  The 
proposed addition would seem to go against the spirit and intent of the 
regulations. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Motion to deny the variance due to the request not meeting the requirements of 
State Statute and City Ordinance as they pertain to variances and the statutory 
requirements, particularly uniqueness, hardship, and the spirit and intent of the 
adopted regulations. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Variance application

• Variance justification and site map from owner

• Aerial map









2302 Donald

jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Text Box
Subject Property

jrohr
Line

jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Text Box
Proposed Addition

jrohr
Line









Board of Zoning Appeals Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Exception Application #02-14 

ADDRESS:  501 Vine St. 

OWNER: Inam and Shehnaz Haq  

James Wacker (Authorized Agent) 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Exception – Special Use 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

AGENDA DATE:  February 12, 2014 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The applicant is requesting a special use permit to allow for the construction of 
storage units on the property located at 501 Vine St. (see attached site drawing)  
Staff recommends denial of the special use permit due to the request not being in 
conformance with several of the factors to be considered for a special use permit per 
City Ordinance. (as further detailed below) 

BACKGROUND: 

• The applicant is requesting a special use permit to allow for the construction of
storage units on the property located at 501 Vine St.

• The property is zoned C-2, General Commercial and Service District

• All commercial zoning districts require a special use permit from the BZA
before storage units are allowed to be developed

STANDARDS OF EVALUATION: 

Per State Statute 12-759 (e) and City Ordinance Sec. 71-1250 (3) 

In taking into consideration applications for a special use permit, the BZA shall give 
consideration to the comprehensive zoning plan, the health, safety, morals, comfort 
and general welfare of the inhabitants of the community, including, but not limited to, 
the following factors: 

City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement



� Page 2

• The stability and integrity of the various zoning districts

• Conservation of property values

• Protection against fire and casualties

• Observation of general police regulations

• Prevention of traffic congestion

• Promotion of traffic safety and the orderly parking of motor vehicles

• Promotion of the safety of individuals and property

• Provision for adequate light and air

• Prevention of overcrowding and excessive intensity of land uses

• Provision for public utilities

• Invasion by inappropriate uses

• Value, type and character of existing or authorized improvements and
land use

• Encouragement of improvements and land uses in keeping with overall
planning

• Provision for orderly and proper urban renewal, development and
growth

By ordinance, the BZA does have the authority to impose certain restrictions, 
conditions, terms, time limitations, landscaping, and other appropriate safeguards to 
protect adjoining property.   

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

As the City prepares to undergo a complete evaluation and rewrite of our current 
zoning and subdivision regulations, one of the areas to be considered will be design 
standards and how they can be applied to areas of development, particularly the 
“Gateways” to the City.  Storage units would be considered an inappropriate use in a 
“gateway” area.  The property located at 501 Vine St. is considered one of these 
gateways since it is highly visible from both Vine St. and HWY 183 By-pass, both 
State highways.  Typically, aesthetics of storage unit facilities are not up to the 
standards one would consider in a high traffic and highly visible location. 

The applicant has not provided any documentation that would ensure the property 
would be aesthetically pleasing.  No design criteria has been submitted or described 
by the applicant. 

Other issues with the property pertain to the flood plain.  The property is completely 
within the 100-yr FEMA floodplain.  Development is tricky and limited at best.  Since 
this property is within a defined stream channel with a drainage area greater than 3 
sq. miles, the State of Kansas Division of Water Resources regulations regarding 
floodplain fill must be followed.  At this point, no State permits have been applied for. 
An elevation survey has been completed, and per the survey, the average fill across 



� Page 3

the property would be required to be 1.5-2.5 feet in depth.  It is of City staff’s opinion 
that a State permit for fill in the floodplain would not be granted in this situation.  The 
property is adjacent to two State highways which could be adversely impacted by the 
placement of fill. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Motion to deny the application for a special use permit due to many factors including 
conservation of adjacent property values, especially when considering how the 
development could impact flooding of the surrounding areas and surrounding 
developments.  This can also be considered an invasion of inappropriate uses, 
especially since there are no design criteria regulations to be applied in this case. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exception application

• Statement of justification and site map from owner







501 Vine St

jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Text Box
Subject Property

jrohr
Line










	02-12-2014 Agenda
	01-08-2014
	01-14- 2302 Donald
	01-14
	01-14
	01-14
	14-01


	01-14 last page

	01-14 Aerial Image

	02-14 501 Vine
	02-14
	02-14 - 501 Vine
	2014_01_30_16_20_07

	501 Vine


	01-14- 2302 Donald.pdf
	01-14
	01-14
	01-14
	14-01


	01-14 last page

	2302 Donald Recommendation
	01-14 Aerial Image




